

Agenda Item 2.1.1

CWM TAF MORGANNWG UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD

 ‘CONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE COMMITTEE HELD ON 22 AUGUST 2023, AS A VIRTUAL MEETING WHICH WAS HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

PRESENT
Patsy Roseblade

-
Independent Member (Chair)

Mel Jehu
   

-
Independent Member
Nicola Milligan

-
Independent Member
Dilys Jouvenat

-
Independent member 

IN ATTENDANCE 

Linda Prosser

-
Executive Director of Strategy & 
Transformation 
Gethin Hughes 

-
Chief Operating Officer 

Sally May


-
Executive Director of Finance
Darren Griffiths 

-
Audit Wales (Observing)

Emma Samways 

-
Internal Audit (Observing)
Cally Hamblyn

-
Assistant Director of Governance & 

Risk
Kathrine Davies 

- 
Corporate Governance Manager
(Meeting Secretariat)
PART 1. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

1.1.0
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting including Dilys Jouvenat, Independent Member to her first meeting as a Member of the Committee. 
1.2.0
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Carolyn Donoghue, Independent Member. 
1.3.0
DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS



There were none declared. 
PART 2. CONSENT AGENDA 

2.1 FOR APPROVAL

2.1.1
‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 28 JUNE 2023
Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 
2.1.2
‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE IN COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 28 JUNE 2023
Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 
2.2 FOR NOTING
2.2.1
MONTHLY MONITORING RETURNS TO WELSH GOVERNMENT 

Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Monitoring Returns for Month 4.
2.2.2
ACTION LOG  

Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Action Log.  

3.0 MAIN AGENDA

3.1.0
MATTERS ARISING NOT PREVIOUSLY CONTAINED WITHIN THE ACTION LOG. 
There were none. 
4.0 GOVERANCE

4.1.0
ORGANISATIONAL RISK REGISTER 


C. Hamblyn presented the report that outlined the high-level organisational risks that had been assigned to the Committee, and highlighted the management actions and mitigation. 
D. Jouvenat referred to risk 4458 where it had been recommended that it transferred to another risk and queried where that would be reported. C. Hamblyn advised that it had been assigned to the Quality and Safety Committee and had been combined with risk 3826.  

N. Milligan in response, requested that when the risk was closed and amalgamated that the original date of the risk was reflected in order to see the audit trail. C. Hamblyn advised that for completeness she would share the organisational risk register to the Committee so they could review the risk.

M. Jehu commented on the recent media attention in relation to the ‘Letby’ Case and the issues with mortality reviews.  He referred to the discussion at a previous Health Board meeting where he had raised mortality rates and sought assurance about safety on the hospital sites that those figures were accurate and robust.  

C. Hamblyn advised that in terms of assurance the Executive Leadership Group had discussed the case in detail and not just in terms of assurance to staff about mechanisms in place for monitoring neonatal deaths and mortality but also about reiterating awareness in relation to raising concerns and speaking up safely.  She added that the Quality & Safety Committee and the Health Board Meeting in held July 2023 had received assurance on mortality rates and that this matter had been concluded.  However, she advised that she would share the minutes outside of the meeting for completeness. 
P. Roseblade confirmed that the Quality and Safety Committee had received the report at the July 2023 meeting and were provided with re-assurance and this had been contained within the Committee Highlight Report that had been presented to the July
2023 Health Board Meeting. 

L. Prosser confirmed that risk 5207 (Care home) was being closely monitored following its de-escalated score within the register. The Committee were assured that the risk would not be closed. 
Resolution: The report was NOTED. 

Action:
To share the detail of the amalgamated risks 4458 and 3826 via the organisational risk register with the Committee. 
Action: 
Share the minutes and report from the Quality & Safety Committee  and the Health Board meeting from July 2023 in relation to assurances on mortality rates. 

4.2.0
OUTCOME OF COMMITTEE SELF EFFECTIVENESS SURVEY 2022-23 
P. Roseblade drew members attention to feedback noted within the action plan in relation to timeliness of papers being received.  Members discussed the timelines for the reporting of the Performance and Finance Reports and agreed to review outside of the meeting along with the scheduling of meetings to incorporate Welsh Government reporting deadlines. 
Resolution: 
The report was NOTED. 
Action:  
To review and discuss the timelines for the receipt of papers and to consider changing the scheduled dates of the meetings in order to assist with the reporting timelines. 
5.0 IMPROVING CARE 
5.1.0 
INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD
L. Prosser presented the report providing the Committee with an update on performance against a number of key quality and 
performance indicators.

G. Hughes referred to the targeted interventions on a number of areas of performance and focused the update on the following key areas: 

- Ambulance handovers 
- Planned Care
- Review of Interventions Not Normally Undertaken (INNU) Policy

P. Roseblade drew attention to page 4 of the report, referring to the target of reducing the number of patients referred from primary care and queried whether there was an issue with over referring into secondary care.  She added that there was no red release information contained within the report and referred to page 13 with regard to Stroke and queried the national description of the Stroke process which could come across as confusing and referred to the statement that three of six patients had been thrombolysed within the 45 minute window and suggested that for a future meeting it would be helpful to see what a difference this makes. 
In response to the reduction of referrals from primary care, G. Hughes identified that there was a higher referral rate in Cwm Taf Morgannwg (CTM) than it was in comparison to other Health Boards. He referred to the post COVID recovery and the pre COVID levels of activity from GP referrals and assured the Committee that work was being done through the health pathways which was a national piece of work. He apologised for not providing the red release data and assured the Committee that there had been no red release declines. 

In terms of the additional questions, G. Hughes explained the process for the identification of Stroke within a fixed window. He acknowledged that there was work to be done in terms of the volume of patients, and in response to the final question suggested that they arrange for James White (Stroke Physician/Regional clinical lead for Stroke) to possibly attend a future meeting of the Committee as part of the spotlight part of the agenda to describe the statistics and outcomes. 
M. Jehu referred to the single cancer pathway on page 15 of the report and queried what were the main areas of risk. He questioned the percentage of 83% of patients on the active pathway and sought clarification on how many patients were on the first 
outpatient or diagnostic stage.  
In response, G. Hughes clarified that there were roughly around 3000 patients at the first outpatient or diagnostic state of the pathway. 
M. Jehu re-emphasised that good communication with patients was important to ensure they fully understood the process of their pathway. 

G. Hughes agreed the importance of communication, and advised that additional funding from MacMillan for ‘Navigator Support’ for patients had been received. He assured the Committee that the navigator support team were working with and maintaining contact with patients to keep them updated on their pathway. He stressed the importance of getting the patients through the diagnostic pathway within 28 days and the efforts of delivering the diagnostics. 

N. Milligan referred to the graph on page 15 and sought clarification when improvements would be anticipated as these were not showing.  G. Hughes, in response, advised that the graph would be reviewed further with the team and updated for the next meeting. 

Resolution: The Report was NOTED.  
Action:    Arrange for James White (Stroke Physician/Regional clinical lead for Stroke) possibly attend a future meeting of the Committee, to describe the statistics and outcomes.
Action: 
To review and update the mitigating improvements to the graph on page 15 of the report. 

5.2.0
PLANNED CARE RECOVERY AND OPHTHALMOLOGY IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

G. Hughes provided a presentation on the Planned Care Recovery and an update on progress of the Ophthalmology Improvement Plan.  

N. Milligan queried the appointment for the Head of Optometry and Orthoptics
that had been out to advert and presumed that it had now closed.  G. Hughes confirmed that it had. 
P. Roseblade referred to the change to the scale of the graph in 5.4 of the Performance Report that outlined the waiting times for follow up patients not booked (FUNB), and questioned whether the reduction in the waits was due to demonstrable improvement in the FUNB activity. G. Hughes responded that the FUNB backlog had reduced albeit, not quite low enough. He added that they had to be cognisant of the risk that sits within this speciality and particularly glaucoma and advised that this cohort were being prioritised. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report. 
5.3.0
CIVIL CONTINGENCIES AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

L. Prosser presented the Annual Report for 2022-23 which had been received by the Health Board at its May 2023 meeting. She reminded the Committee that the paper referred to two key points namely, the refresh of the Major Incident Plan and the embedding of knowledge and practice of Emergency Preparedness Response and Recovery (EPRR) within the Care Groups. 

M. Jehu responded that clarification was required on the definition of ‘reasonable compliance’ within the report and what the next stages would be should anything arise. In response L. Prosser advised she would query this with the South Wales Local Resilience Forum (SWLRF) colleagues for more information on the scales of judgement. L. Prosser also confirmed she was the nominated Person for CTM on the SWLRF. 

The Chair congratulated Jason Evans on his work and the information provided within the report. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report. 
Action: 
Clarification to be sought around reasonable compliance to be sought from the SWLRF. 
5.4.0
MANCHESTER ARENA INQUIRY RECOMMENDATIONS – CTMUHB ASSURANCE 

L. Prosser presented the report that advised the Committee on the assurance against the Manchester Arena Inquiry Recommendations and the letter provided by the South Wales Local Resilience Forum (SWLRF) Chair.
M. Jehu questioned the staff training and asked for reassurance that the plan was fit for purpose before being signed off. L. Prosser responded that in terms of the plan this would be presented to the Committee annually via the EPRR Annual Report and she provided assurance that the reporting on the adherence to statutory or mandatory training requirements were in place. 
P. Roseblade queried whether mutual aid was still in place. L. Prosser advised that there would not be bilateral arrangements but that it would be controlled through the command structures outlined within the report. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report and the assurance against Manchester Arena Inquiry Recommendations letter provided by SWLRF Chair.

6. SUSTAINING OUR FUTURE

6.1.0
MONTH 4 FINANCE REPORT & PERFORMANCE REPORT 

S. May presented the Month 4 Finance Report and Performance Report.


P. Roseblade referred to the adverse variance of £2.8m that included a shortfall of £3.5m and advised that she could not see the detail of this within the report.  S. May confirmed that the detail was contained within the Month 4 Performance Report which provided more detail in relation to the delegated overspend that was currently at £16.1m, which was an adverse variance of £8.2m in comparison to the Month 2 year to date control total of £7.9m.  

She confirmed that the variance included a £6.2m shortfall against the new delegated savings targets for 2023-24 of £28.3m. This related to the Care Groups and was challenging in terms of delivery and mitigating actions would need to be undertaken quite rapidly. 

P. Roseblade queried whether there were plans in place in relation to cash management.  S. May advised that cash could be a major risk unless something substantially changed.  It had also been discussed at the all Wales Directors of Finance meeting last week.  She advised that it was estimated that they would have to move into cash management activities from November or December 2023 and were keeping a close eye on this. Actions were also being taken on an all Wales level to manage this. 

Resolution:  The Committee NOTED the Month 4 Finance report and Month 4      


   Finance Performance report.  
7.0.0 OTHER MATTERS 

7.1.0

HIGHLIGHT REPORT TO BOARD 
Resolution: The Committee AGREED that the report would be prepared by the 

Governance Team following the meeting. 
7.2.0

FORWARD WORK PLAN 

The Chair asked Members of the Committee if they had any items that they would like to include for future meetings to let the Governance Team know.  
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Forward Work Plan 
7.3.0

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 

P. Roseblade returned to the previous discussion regarding the ‘Letby’ Case. She advised that it was important that staff felt that they were able to report concerns. N. Milligan referred to a recent report where it had mentioned staff not feeling that concerns raised were being acted upon. She suggested that the Committee look carefully at this in light of the wider picture within the NHS and the outcome of the recent staff survey. 
7.4.0
HOW DID WE DO TODAY?

The Chair advised members should they have any comments following the meeting to email the Corporate Governance Team. 
7.5.0
CLOSE OF THE MEETING – DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING:
The next full meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held on 31st October 2023. 
PAGE  
	‘Confirmed’ Minutes Planning, Performance & Finance Committee 22.08.2023                                     
	Page 1 of 8
	Planning, Performance & Finance Committee          

24th October 2023



